Section 2-4.2. Meeting Participation by Electronic Communication; meeting minutes; attendance at closed meetings; definitions; when remote participation allowed; responsibility of the chair; what is required in the minutes; special requirements when remote participation approved; when remote participation not approved; Quorum Required; when all virtual meetings allowed. — A. Except as provided hereafter, or as otherwise permitted by law, the School Board shall not conduct any meeting wherein the public business is discussed or transacted through telephonic, video, electronic, or other electronic communication means where the members are not physically assembled. This policy is applied strictly and uniformly, without exception, to the entire membership of the School Board and without regard to the identity of the member requesting remote participation or the matters that will be considered or voted on at the meeting.

- B. The minutes of meetings conducted in accordance with this policy, if any, include
  - <u>the identity of the members of the committee who participated in the meeting through electronic communication means,</u>
  - (ii) the identity of the committee members who were physically assembled at one physical location, and
  - (iii) the identity of the members of the committee who were not present at the location identified in (ii) but who monitored such meeting through electronic communication means.
- C. Members of the School Board are permitted to attend any closed meeting held by any committee of the School Board or any committee created to advise the School Board. The minutes of the committee, if any, include the identity of any School Board member who attends a closed meeting of the committee.
- D. For purpose of this policy the following definitions apply:

"Electronic communication" means the use of technology having electrical, digital, magnetic, wireless, optical, electromagnetic, or similar capabilities to transmit or receive information.

"All-virtual public meeting" means a public meeting (i) conducted by the School Board using electronic communication means, (ii) during which all members of the School Board who participate do so remotely rather than being assembled in one location, and (iii) to which public access is provided through electronic communication means.

"Committee" means a committee, subcommittee, or other entity however designated of the School Board created to perform delegated functions of the School Board or to advise the School Board. It does not exclude any such committee, subcommittee, or entity because it has private sector or citizen members.

<u>"Electronic communication" means the use of technology having electrical, digital, magnetic, wireless, optical, electromagnetic, or similar capabilities to transmit or receive information.</u>

"Remote participation" means participation by an individual member of the committee by electronic communication means in a public meeting where a quorum of the committee is otherwise physically assembled.

- B. A member of the School Board may participate in any meeting wherein the public business is discussed or transacted through electronic communication means if:
- (1) On or before the day of a meeting, a member of the School Board notifies the chair that such member is unable to attend the meeting due to
- E. Members of the School Board or of any committee appointed by the School Board may use remote participation instead of attending a meeting in person if, in advance of the meeting, each committee member seeking to use remote participation notifies the committee chair that:
  - (i) a temporary or permanent disability or other medical condition that prevents the member's physical attendance;
  - (ii) a family member has a medical condition that requires the School Board member to provide care that prevents the School Board member's physical attendance;
  - (iii) the member's principal residence is more than 60 miles from the meeting location identified in the required notice for such meeting.
  - that such member is unable to attend the meeting due to a personal matter and identifies with specificity the nature of the personal matter and the remote location from which the member plans to participate. However, the member may not use remote participation due to personal matters more than two meetings per calendar year or 25 percent of the meetings held per calendar year up to the next whole number, whichever is greater. A member of the School Board may only use remote participation for meeting of the School Board due to personal matters is limited each calendar year to two meetings of the School Board.
    - (v) the member's principal residence is more than 60 miles from the meeting location identified in the required notice for such meeting.
- F. The chair reports such requests, if any, to the Board at the beginning of each meeting. Those members of the Board assembled at the primary meeting location must consider the requests for remote participation from each member seeking to use remote participation prior to the member participating in the meeting. The requests, as reported by the chair, and the votes on each member's request are recorded in the minutes.
- G. If participation in a public meeting by a member of the School Board or by a member of a committee appointed by the School Board is through electronic

communication means is approved pursuant to subsection  $A \to B$  above, the School Board or committee of the School Board records in its minutes

- (i) the identity of the member or members of the School Board <u>or committee</u> <u>of the School Board</u> who participated in the meeting through electronic communication means;
- (ii) the identity School Board members who were physically assembled at one physical location; and
- (iii) the remote location from which the member participated. However, the remote location need not be open to the public and may be identified in the minutes, if any, by a general description.
- <u>H.</u> If participation is approved due to a temporary or permanent disability or other medical condition, or medical condition of a family member, the School Board <u>or committee of the School Board</u> also includes in its minutes the fact that the member participated through electronic communication means due to a temporary or permanent disability or other medical condition that prevented the member's physical attendance or the medical condition of a family member. If participation is approved due to a personal matter, the School Board or committee of the School Board also includes in its minutes the specific nature of the personal matter cited by the member. If participation is approved because the member's principal residence is more than 60 miles from the meeting location, the School Board includes in its minutes the fact that the member participated through electronic communication means due to the distance between the member's principal residence and the meeting location.
- I. If a member's participation from a remote location is disapproved, such disapproval is recorded in the minutes with specificity.
- J. A school board member <u>or member of any committee appointed by the School Board</u> may participate in a meeting by electronic means pursuant to subsection E above only when:
- (1) a quorum of the School Board is physically assembled at one primary or central meeting location; and
- (2) the School Board will arrange for the voice of the remote participant to be heard by all persons at the primary or central meeting location.
- E. Such participation by a School Board member by electronic communication means due to personal matter is limited each calendar year to two meetings of the School Board.
- F. <u>K.</u> The School Board may hold an all virtual meeting without a quorum physically assembled at one location when the Governor has declared a state of emergency in accordance with Va. Code § 44-146.17, provided:

- (a) the catastrophic nature of the declared emergency makes it impractical or unsafe to assemble a quorum in a single location, and
- (b) the purpose of the meeting is to address the emergency. If it holds a meeting pursuant to this section, the School Board shall:
  - give public notice using the best available method given the nature of the emergency contemporaneously with the notice provided members of the School Board; and
  - (ii) make arrangements for public access to the meeting.

For any meeting conducted pursuant to this section, the nature of the emergency, the fact that the meeting was held by electronic communication means and the type of electronic communication means by which the meeting was held, shall be stated in the minutes of the meeting. (Adopted March 12, 2009; Ordinance Number 08/09-28; Effective Date: July 1, 2009; Revised April 14, 2016; Ordinance Number 15/16-20; Effective Date: July 1, 2016; Revised October 12, 2017; Ordinance 17/18-6; Effective Date: October 12, 2017; Revised Date: February 14, 2019; Ordinance 18/19-61; Effective Date: February 14, 2019; Ordinance 22/23-79, Revised/Effective: May 11, 2023)

**Legal Authority** - Virginia Code §§ 2.2-3701, 2.2-3707, <del>2.2-3708.2</del>, <u>2.2-3708.3</u>, <del>2.2-3710</del>, <u>2.2-3711</u>, <u>2.2-3712</u> as amended. Acts 2020, c. 1283.